Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc.
2021 Industrial Drive
Sandpoint , ID 83864

www.tamarackaero.com

Up to $4,999,999.24 in Common Stock at $4.43
Minimum Target Amount: $9,998.51

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc.
Address: 2021 Industrial Drive, Sandpoint , ID 83864
State of Incorporation: WA

Date Incorporated: June 07, 2010

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,998.51 | 2,257 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $4,999,999.24 | 1,128,668 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $4.43

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $248.08

*Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Investor shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(the "CEQ™), or his or her successor, as the Investor’s true and lawful proxy and
attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Investor, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Investor pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Investor is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Investor and, so long as the Investor is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Investor or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the
Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1935 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Commeon Stock.

Investment Incentives*
Early Bird
Friends and Family - First 72 hours | 10% bonus shares

Super Early Bird - Next 72 hours | 8% bonus shares



Early Bird Bonus - Next 7 days | 5% bonus shares

Volume

Tier 1 Perk: Invest $1,000+ and receive a Tamarack Hat

Tier 2 Perk: Invest $2,000+ and receive a Swag Pack #1: Hat and T-Shirt

Tier 3 Perk: Invest $5,000+ and receive additional 1% bonus shares and Swag Pack #2:
Hat, T-Shirt, Tamarack Yeti mug, & Laptop Sticker

Tier 4 Perk: Invest $10,000+ and receive additional 3% bonus shares and Listing on
Tamarack Website as a Partner in Sustainable Aviation + Desktop Aviation
Sustainability Memento

Tier 5 Perk: Invest $50,000+ and receive additional 5% bonus shares and invitation to a
virtual tour of the Tamarack facility with Q &A with Tamarack President, Jacob
Klinginsmith + Swag Pack #2

Tier 6 Perk: Invest $100,000+ and receive additional 7% bonus shares and a personal
video call with Tamarack Founder, Nick Guida

*All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all
investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine
Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if vou buy 100 shares of Common Stock at
$4.43 / share, you will receive 110 shares of Common Stock, meaning you'll own 110
shares for $443. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors’ eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

Insider Investment Notice

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.



The Company and its Business

Company Overview

Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc. (the "Company” or "Tamarack") was founded with
one mission in mind: to provide real-world step change advancement in aerospace
efficiency technology.

Qur patented SMARTWING™ technology has already transformed the efficiency of
over 150 light jets, and now, we are working to bring this fuel-saving technology into
the regional, commercial, and military aviation sectors.

After extensive research and development, securing patent protection, and obtaining
certification from the European Aviation Safety Association (EASA), the Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA), and other certifying authorities around the world,
Tamarack began selling and installing its SMARTWING™ active winglet products in
2013.

Tamarack has established a global fleet of aircraft as well as an installation and service
network. Tamarack Transformation Centers offer installations in under 10 days in
three global locations. The Tamarack Authorized Service Center Network offers 24/7,
global fleet support for maintenance.

Corporate History
The Company was initially organized as a Washington corporation named "The

Winglet Group, Inc.” on June 7, 2010 but changed its name to Tamarack Aerospace
Group, Inc. shortly after, on July 21, 2010.

Intellectual Property

Tamarack owns a significant amount of Intellectual Property (IP). Tamarack has been
granted fourteen (14) patents in the United States and twenty (20) patents in various
international jurisdictions and has twelve (12) pending patent applications in the US
and abroad. In addition, Tamarack holds three (3) US trademark registrations, three (3)
European trademark registrations, three (3) Australian trademark registrations, and
two (2) Japanese trademark registrations. In addition to its patents and trademarks,
Tamarack has numerous trade secrets relating to its aircraft load alleviation design
and implementation. Finally, Tamarack has various governmental certifications,
including seven (7) Supplemental Type Certificates, Production Manufacturing
Authorization (PMA) from the FAA, and FAA Repair Station Authorization, and a
developed a host of trade secrets related to aircraft load alleviation design and
implementation.

Bankruptcy Proceeding

On June 1, 2019, Tamarack filed a voluntary Chapter 11 reorganization bankruptcy
proceeding (Case No. 19-01492) in the midst of a temporary grounding of the
Tamarack Active Winglet fleet (91 aircraft) following an in-flight incident in the UK



(which resulted in no injuries and no damage). The grounding was lifted by the FAA in
July 2019, calling for the implementation of previous Service Bulletins for the entire
fleet, and in September 2019, Tamarack filed its Plan of Reorganization, which was
confirmed by the Court in March 2020. The confirmed Plan of Reorganization
provided for payment of 100% of all allowed claims, and the Plan was substantially
consummated. In August 2021, the Chapter 11 case was closed. The outcome of the
Chapter 11 proceeding was a complete success, providing temporary protection for
Tamarack and Tamarack customers during a regulatory action outside of Tamarack’s
control.

Litigation

Three complaints have been filed against Tamarack for wrongful death related to a
2018 aircraft accident, and these are pending before the United States District Court
for the Eastern District of Washington. As identified in the Plan of Reorganization,
those claims are limited to the extent of insurance coverage available under
Tamarack’s insurance policies pursuant to Court order. As such, there should be no
financial exposure to Tamarack in the way of ongoing legal fees, costs, or in the event
of adverse judgement. An additional subrogation claim is outstanding related to the
same 2018 accident that was not adjudicated in the above approved reorganization
plan that is related to the 2020 wrongful death case. This subrogation claim has been
consolidated with the three wrongful death cases. (Case numbers 2:20-cv-00060-RMP,
2:20-cv-00061-RMP, 2:20-cv-00062-RMP, and 2:20-cv-00421-RMP)

In 2021, Tamarack brought a breach of contract action against Meta Special Aerospace
LLC relating to a long-term engineering contract. This case was settled in March 2022
and was dismissed. The defendant has agreed to pay $1,040,000 to Tamarack in three
installments over six months. (Case number 2:21-cv-00126)

In early 2021, Tamarack was named in a third-party complaint calling for
indemnification of Textron Aviation in a breach of warranty suit filed by a mutual
customer. This case was settled in June 2021. (Case number 20-cv-002271-AJB(MSB)

Competitors and Industry

Competitors

Several companies offer aftermarket aircraft winglets, including Aviation Partners,
Aviation Partners Boeing, Winglet Technologies, and BLR Aerospace. Other major
OEMs like Airbus, Boeing, Lockhead & others are technically competitors in the
winglet space as well.

Aviation Partners (or Aviation Partners Boeing, which is a joint venture between
Aviation Partners and Boeing) is the industry leader in the winglet market. "Blended
Winglets”™ using Aviation Partners technology have now been installed on almost
9,000 aircraft worldwide and are recognizable by their widespread use on major
carriers such as Southwest Airlines on their fleet of 737 aircraft.



However, even though traditional "passive” winglets have combined to save billions of
gallons of jet fuel over the years, every competitor in the current landscape is offering
products that are based on 100-year-old technology.

Tamarack offers the next generation of aerodynamic efficiency in the aviation
industry because Tamarack's SMARTWING™ technology is adaptive to flight
conditions. All other competitors only offer static, non-movable solutions, which are
aerodynamically compromised. Tamarack’s intellectual property (nearly 30 patents)
and established technology (flying on over 150 business jets) differentiates Tamarack
from its competitors.

Tamarack’s patented SMARTWING™ technology, which focuses on active load-
alleviation techniques, provides significant aerodynamic improvements that provide
much larger drag reduction benefits for aircraft. Where traditional winglets provide
about 5% fuel savings, Tamarack’s SMARTWING™ technology provides over 15% fuel
savings. Tamarack’s SMARTWING™ technology makes wings and/or winglets more
efficient through the use of active load-alleviation techniques that no competitor is
using.

Other emerging sustainability technologies such as Sustainable Aviation Fuel and
hybrid or electric propulsion technologies will bring fuel savings, but these are not
competitive with Tamarack’s technology. In fact, they are synergistic with Tamarack’s
technology.

Industry

The winglet industry is unique and specific. According to MarketWatch, the winglet
industry is estimated to be approximately $2 billion and is projected to grow at
approximately 9% through 2026 (Source: Global Market Insights). However, the
COVID-19 pandemic has increased the social awareness and demand for sustainable
solutions in aviation and has created an environment where regulators are
implementing more accountability for the aviation industry to adopt sustainability
measures, such as winglets, which are a proven fuel and emissions saving technology.

Current Stage and Roadmap

Current Stage

We have invested several million dollars to develop, patent, and certify the Tamarack
SMARTWING™ technology for eight variants of light jets and have a growing fleet of
150+ aircraft. The fleet has proven the aerodynamic benefits with demonstrated
efficiency gains of up to 33%. We also have established three Tamarack
Transformation Centers that provide installation of Tamarack’s SMARTWING™
products in under two weeks (compared to a month or more for traditional winglet
installations). Finally, we have a Certification Services business that provides highly
specialized aerospace engineering services to other innovative aerospace companies,
while also serving our own product development and certification needs.



The current technology, patents, intellectual property, and business infrastructure has
been established with larger aircraft in mind because the mission of the company has
always been to scale into larger markets, providing substantial fuel savings to aircraft
operators and significant returns for investors.

The Company is currently conducting flight validation on two new models of aircraft,
the King Air 200 and King Air 350, which are commonly used in private air charter,
such as Wheels Up, and also in the defense community for various tasks including
Intelligence Surveillance Reconnaissance (ISR) missions, medivac, or crew
movements, etc. Of primary interest in the ISR role, is significantly improved
endurance, along with many other benefits such as improved takeoff weight limits,
shorter takeoff/landing, improved stability, wing inspection improvements, etc. The
King Air with Tamarack Active Winglets would distinguish the platform far above the
state of the art currently.

Tamarack is pursuing this platform at the request of military operators who
approached Tamarack after recognizing the benefits on the existing business jets and
looking for that added capability for their operations.

The predicted results of the Active Winglet modification on the King Air have been
validated by independent aerodvnamics/performance company AMI, and flight test
validation of these values will be completed as the first step in the program to de-risk
the costly certification phase.

The prototype Flight Validation effort is being conducted on a King Air 200 platform,
and work is underway currently on a King Air 350 platform, which will take several
months of flight evaluations, and market survey through Spring 2022, before moving
ahead with the FAA certification.

Future Roadmap

Working from this foundation of patented, scalable technology and a proven team of
experts to navigate FAA and international certification, we are ready to advance from
the light jet market to the larger, regional, commercial airlines and military markets.

Aviation sustainability has never been more important, and Tamarack has a proven
technology that is readily available when compared to other emerging technologies
such as Sustainable Aviation Fuel and hybrid or electric propulsion technologies.

Timing for this move into larger platforms will depend on available funding to scale
the technology into higher Technology Readiness Levels (TRL) for larger platforms,
with larger form factors. Tamarack is working to secure funding and strategic
partnerships that would allow certification work to begin on a regional aircraft in 2024
and a narrow body commercial aircraft in 2025. These FAA certification efforts are
expected to take 24 to 30 months.

By scaling our ECO-SMARTWING™ technology and retrofitting just the narrow-body
Airbus and Boeing fleet, as an example, we could reduce CO2 emissions by an



estimated 1.6 billion tons by 2040. That’s 20% of the International Civil Aviation
Organization (ICAQO) predicted emissions gap!

The winglet market represents nearly 353 billion of addressable opportunity.
Tamarack’s patented technology combined with its proven ability to meet the
complicated certification requirements for products in aerospace leads to a big
competitive advantage in addressing this market.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Jacob Scott Klinginsmith
Jacob Scott Klinginsmith's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: President
Dates of Service: June 06, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: The President is an executive officer of the Company and
subject to the direction and control of the Board of Directors and the Chief

Executive Officer. The President is responsible for general supervision of the
business of the Company and shall perform such other duties as the Board of
Directors or Chief Executive Officer designates. The President will preside at
meetings of the Board of Directors when the Chief Executive Officer is
unavailable unless a Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected and present.

Position: Director

Dates of Service: June 03, 2019 - Present

Responsibilities: With the other members of the Board of Directors, this position
includes all corporate powers to exercise, direct, and manage the business and
affairs of the Corporation.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc

Title: Chief Engineer

Dates of Service: June 04, 2013 - June 03, 2019

Responsibilities: Oversight of all engineering activities & primary focal with
engineering contacts outside the company such as clients and regulators.

Name: Nicholas Robert Guida
Nicholas Robert Guida's current primary role is with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:



e Position: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: June 06, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is an executive officer of the
Company and subject to the direction and control of the Board of Directors. The
CEO is responsible for the general supervision of the business of the Company in
conjunction with the President of the Company and shall perform such other
duties as the Board of Directors designates. Additionally, the CEO will preside at
meetings of the Board of Directors unless a Chairman of the Board of Directors is
elected and present. Mr. Guida previously served as CEO in the early years of the
company and later resumed the CEO role in 2019.

e Position: Chairman of the Board
Dates of Service: June 21, 2010 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholders, the Chairman is expected to
manage the business affairs and property of the company.

e Position: Founder
Dates of Service: June 07, 2010 - Present
Responsibilities: Started the company with patented technology. He has served
as chief engineer, test pilot, DER, business development, and sales and
marketing director.

e Position: Chief Technical Officer
Dates of Service: June 07, 2010 - Present
Responsibilities: The CTO is responsible for the company’s technical vision, and
how it will meet customers’ needs. A keystone of this role is innovation paired
with thought leadership and responsible for the technical direction of the
product and development.

Name: Jere Lee Kovach

Jere Lee Kovach's current primary role is with Bank of Star Valley. Jere Lee Kovach
currently services 1 hour hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Secretary
Dates of Service: June 06, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: The Secretary is responsible for preparing the minutes of the
directors’ and shareholders’ meeting and keep them in one or more books
provided for that purpose; authenticate records of the corporation; see that all
notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws or as
required by law; be custodian of the corporate records; keep a register of the post
office address of each shareholder which shall be furnished to the Secretary by
such shareholder; sign with the President, certificates for shares of the
corporation, the issuance of which shall have been authorized by resolution of



the Board of Directors; have general charge of the stock transfer books of the
corporation and in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of
Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by
the President or by the Board of Directors.

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 03, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholders is expected to manage the business
affairs and property of the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Emplover: Bank of Star Valley
Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dates of Service: September 22, 2003 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversight & leadership of the Board of Directors including
Chair of the Loan Committee and Chair of the Investment Committee.

Name: Lisa Viula Kassa
Lisa Viula Kassa's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Treasurer
Dates of Service: February 20, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: The treasurer is responsible for the care and custody of the
money, funds, and securities of the corporation, share account for the same, and
shall have and exercise, under supervision of the Board of Directors, all the
powers and duties commonly incident to this office.

¢ Position: Controller
Dates of Service: January 10, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: The Controller of the company is responsible the activities the
day to day accounting activities, for timely reporting of the monthly financial
statements and timely filing with government filings, working with financial
auditors and maintaining and corporate governance reporting that is normal to
this position.

Name: Justin Mark Ryan, Jr.

Justin Mark Ryan, Jr.'s current primary role is with Streamline Avionics, Inc.. Justin
Mark Ryan, Jr. currently services 1 hour hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:



e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 03, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholders, a Director is expected to manage
the business affairs and property of the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Streamline Avionics, Inc.
Title: CEO, Owner
Dates of Service: February 01, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: CEO, Owner, Director

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Speaker Power
Title: Owner, CEO
Dates of Service: September 01, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Owner & CEO

Name: David Davies Cox

David Davies Cox's current primary role is with Sound Health Chiropractic. David
Davies Cox currently services 1 hour hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 03, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholders is expected to manage the business
affairs and property of the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Sound Health Chiropractic
Title: Chiropractic Provider

Dates of Service: June 01, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: Chiropractor

Name: David Hall McClenahan

David Hall McClenahan's current primary role is with McClenahan Engineering, Inc..
David Hall McClenahan currently services 1 hour hours per week in their role with the
Issuer,

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:



e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 21, 2010 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholders is expected to manage the business
affairs and property of the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: McClenahan Engineering, Inc.
Title: President
Dates of Service: June 01, 2003 - Present
Responsibilities: Engineer

Name: John Snedden

John Snedden's current primary role is with Retired. John Snedden currently services 1
hour hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 03, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholders is expected to manage the business
affairs and property of the company.

Name: John William McCann

John William McCann's current primary role is with Southern Aerospace Engineering,
LLC. John William McCann currently services 1 hour hours per week in their role with
the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 03, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholder is expected to manage the business
affairs and property of the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Southern Aerospace Engineering, LLC
Title: Managing Partner
Dates of Service: November 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Sales, marketing, and management

Other business experience in the past three years:



¢ Employer: Southern Aerospace Metals, LLC
Title: Principal
Dates of Service: November 01, 2014 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsibilities related to being a principal.

Name: Robert George Knollenberg

Robert George Knollenberg's current primary role is with Retired. Robert George
Knollenberg currently services 1 hour hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 30, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Elected by the shareholders is expected to manage the business
affairs and property of the company.

Name: Danny Hiner
Danny Hiner's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and otfices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Operating Officer
Dates of Service: June 03, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversight of the operational elements of the business,
including production and manufacturing, etc.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc.
Title: Production Manager
Dates of Service: March 01, 2012 - June 03, 2019
Responsibilities: Oversight of the Production and Quality activities.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.



These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Company's
Common Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are
sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in
the Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential
investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the
other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our
products, that people think it’s a better option than competing products, or that we
will able to develop and manufacture products at a level that allows the Company to
make a profit and still attract business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock that yvou purchase cannot be resold
for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the stock
back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering registered
with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the benefit of yvour
family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how yvou can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the aerospace industry. However, that may never happen or it
may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating



results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

We cannot specify with certainty the particular uses of the net proceeds that we will
receive from this Offering. Our management will have broad discretion in the
application of the net proceeds. Our shareholders may not agree with the manner in
which our management chooses to allocate and spend the net proceeds. The failure by
our management to apply these funds effectively could have a material adverse effect
on our business or delay the development or commercialization of our product
candidates. Pending their use, we may invest the net proceeds from this Offering in a
manner that does not produce income or that loses value.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor purchases as part of this offering has voting rights
attached. However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and
have agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the "CEQ"), or his
or her successor, as your voting proxy (the "Investor Proxy Agreement”). You are
trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will grow
your investment. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of the Company, you will
only be paid out if there is any cash remaining after the creditors of the Company

have been paid out.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with



the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Our ability to sell products and provide services is dependent on outside government
regulations and actions such as those of the FAA (Federal Aviation Administration),
EASA (European Aviation Safety Association), FTC (Federal Trade Commission) and
other relevant government laws and regulations. The laws and regulations concerning
the certification and selling of the Company’s products may be subject to change, and
the certification, manufacture and sale of the Company’s products may be subject to
delays caused by such regulatory bodies. Such regulatory changes and/or delays could
create an environment where selling the Company’s products may no longer be in the
best interest of the Company, at which point the Company may no longer want to
develop, certify and sell its products. This would have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

Going Concern Opinion

The report of our independent auditors contains an explanatory paragraph as to our
ability to continue as a going concern, as is typical of companies at this stage of
development. The Company’s financial condition could prevent us from obtaining new
financing on reasonable terms or at all.

The valuation used for this offering is not based on an independent valuation.
Although the Company obtained a 409A valuation of $0.34/share from Carta
Valuations LLC as of October 31, 2021, prior to the Company's 1-5 stock split, for
purposes of issuing options to service providers of the Company in compliance with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, we have not obtained a recent
independent valuation of the Company for purposes of determining the Company’s
valuation for this Offering and did not use the results of an independent valuation in
determining the price of this Offering. Therefore, it is possible the price per share of
the Company’s common stock in this Offering is above, equal to, or below fair market
value.



The Company is reliant on the successful development and certification of its own
proprietary technology and products.

The Company has developed its proprietary SmartWing winglet system and has
obtained FAA and international regulatory certification for the technology for only
eight models of Cessna Citation Jets. However, the Company must engage in
significant additional technology development and testing in order to obtain
regulatory certification of the SmartWing technology on other aircraft. The success of
developing, adapting and certifying the SmartWing products depends on a number of
factors including, but not limited to, timely and successful product development and
testing, regulatory certification, market acceptance, the Company’s ability to manage
the risks associated with new product production ramp-up issues, and the risk that
new products may have quality or other defects or deficiencies in the early stages of
introduction. This level of innovation and testing involves potentially significant
expense and carries inherent risk, including difficulties in adapting the SmartWing
technology to other models of aircraft, potential development and production delays,
safety concerns, regulatory pushback or delays, and increased expenses. Our inability
to effectively and timely develop and certify the SmartWing technology for additional
aircraft or to develop the necessary quality controls and production capacity for our
products would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

We have not commissioned a formal market study to assess the demand for our
products and services.

We have not requisitioned a formal marketing study by an independent marketing
organization to evaluate the demand for our anticipated products and services. Our
assessment of the demand for our anticipated products is based on the experience of
our executives, discussions with potential customers and our general knowledge of the
marketplace. Our assessment may not be accurate and there may not be sufficient
demand for our anticipated products and services.

The Company’s ongoing certification efforts for additional models of aircraft will be
evolving in response to customer input and marketplace demand. The Company's
business model is therefore subject to change.

Qur future success will depend on our ability to (i) develop and deploy our products
and services; (ii) attract customers to use our products and services; (iii) enhance our
products and services; (iv) adapt the Tamarack SmartWing technology to additional
aircraft models and obtain regulatory approval and certification to commercially
deploy the SmartWing technology on additional aircraft models; and (v) respond to
technological advances and emerging industry standards and practices on a cost
effective and timely basis. Failure to adapt our technology and obtain certification on
one or more target models of aircraft could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks generally associated with our technology may adversely affect our business and
results of operations.

Our products could experience future system failures and degradations. We may not
be able to prevent an extended business disruption due to a variety of events,



including, but not limited to, human error; component failure; a power or
telecommunications failure; an earthquake, fire, or other natural disaster or other act
of God; hacker attacks or other intentional acts of vandalism; or acts of war. Any
technology or communications system failure that interrupts our operations could
seriously harm our business and have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations, and financial condition.

Tamarack's technology and business plans may involve safety risks.

Flying, whether by our clients or by the Company during testing of our products,
involves a significant potential risk to the safety of humans and property. In the event
of a product malfunction, or even in the course of normal flying activities without
malfunction of our product, catastrophic events are possible. Therefore, risk of
significant liability for Tamarack is possible. In order to protect against such potential
liability, Tamarack has processes and safety systems engineered into its designs and
also has liability insurance, which is and could be continually costly to the Company
or may not be available. Insufficient insurance coverage or major catastrophic events
could expose the Company to enough liability to negatively affect the Company's
business operations or could possibly render the Company insolvent.

Supply chain delays and related issues may negatively impact our business and our
profitability.

In the wake of the global COVID-19 pandemic, many industries have been hurt by
shipping and supply chain disruptions. The aerospace industry has similarly been
affected by such issues. Specifically, we have heard from potential customers who are
interested in our SMARTWING™ products, but they are having trouble finding an
aircraft to purchase first. These shipping and supply chain issues could negatively
impact our business and profitability.

We will need to develop or acquire additional manufacturing and distribution
capabilities in order to commercialize our products on additional aircraft models, and
we may encounter unexpected costs and other difficulties in doing so.

If we obtain certification for our SmartWing technology on additional aircraft models,
we will need to invest in acquiring or building additional capabilities and effectively
manage our operations and facilities to successfully pursue and complete future
development, certification, testing, and commercialization efforts. Any additional
certification process is expected to be expensive and time-consuming, and could be
highly dilutive to existing shareholders even if adequate financing could be obtained.
We will require additional personnel with experience in commercial-scale
manufacturing, managing of large-scale information technology systems and
managing a large-scale distribution system. We will need to add personnel and expand
our capabilities, which may strain our existing managerial, operational, regulatory
compliance, financial and other resources. To do this effectively, we must: recruit,
hire, train, manage, and motivate a growing employee base; accurately forecast
demand for our products; assemble and manage the supply chain to ensure our ability
to meet demand; and expand existing operational, manufacturing, financial, and
management information systems. Should we not complete the development of
adequate capabilities, including manufacturing capacity, our ability to manufacture a



commercial supply of our products could be delayed, which would further delay our
ability to generate additional revenues. We may choose to outsource all or a portion of
our manufacturing requirements to one or more third party contract manufacturing
companies. Under an agreement with such a manufacturing company, we would have
less control over the timing and quality of manufacturing than if we were to perform
such manufacturing ourselves. There is also no guarantee that any such
manufacturing company will continue ongoing operations, which could cause delays
in product supply, reduced revenues and other liabilities for the Company. Any such
events would increase our costs and could delay or prevent our ability to
commercialize our products, which could adversely impact our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Some investors will have additional rights and receive additional benefits.

Please see the “Investment Incentives and Bonuses” section of this Offering
Memorandum to see the specific investment thresholds and the related incentives and
bonuses.

We may be unable to proceed with all opportunities available to us and some
opportunities might be available only on terms unfavorable to us or our investors.

We may be presented with opportunities to pursue joint development projects, joint
ventures, sponsored development and/or certification agreements, government
contracts, and other options for supporting continued development, certification and
commercialization of our technologies. However, there is no guarantee that we will be
able to enter into definitive agreements or that the opportunities will otherwise
materialize in a way that would benefit the Company.

There is no certainty that you will receive a return of, or on, your investment.

The Company may be unsuccessful at achieving the goals of its business plan. If the
Company is not successful at implementing its business plan, purchasers of the Shares
will not realize a return of, or on, their investment. As a result of the uncertainty and
risks associated with the Company's operations, investors may lose their entire
investment in the Shares.

Voting Control is in the hands of a few large shareholders.

Voting control is concentrated in the hands of a small number of shareholders. Even if
the shares were not subject to the proxy discussed above, you would not be able to
influence our policies or any other corporate matter, including the election of
directors, changes to our Company's governance documents, expanding the employee
option pool, and any merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of our
assets, or other major action requiring stockholder approval. As a minority
shareholder and a signatory to the Investor Proxy Agreement, you will not have a say
in these decisions.

Forum Selection clauses in the Transaction Agreements may lead to inconvenience or
cost to you.

The Subscription Agreement has a forum selection provision that requires all disputes
arising out of or based upon an investor’s purchase of Shares in this Offering to be



resolved in a federal court located in Spokane County, Washington, regardless of
convenience or cost to you, the investor.

Competitive technologies could limit our ability to successfully deploy our
technologies.

Existing technologies or new technologies that are subsequently developed and
released, may render Tamarack' technologies obsolete or prevent adoption in the
relevant industries. Such competition could adversely affect our business and market
share.

The Company has only a Iimited operating history and has a history of losses. We may
never achieve or maintain profitability.

The Company was formed as a Washington corporation on June 7, 2010, and has
received revenue relating only to the sale of the Company’s SMARTWING™ winglet
systems on the eight variants of Cessna Citation Jets for which our SmartWing
technology is certified by the FAA, EASA and other aviation regulatory entities around
the world. We expect to incur operating losses as we expand our certification efforts
to other aircraft models. Although we believe there is reason to be optimistic, there
can be no assurance that we will be able to validate or market our products or
technology in the future such that additional revenues will be generated or that any
revenues generated will be sufficient for use to become profitable or thereafter
maintain profitability. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once our
directors determine that we are financially able to do so, and our directors may never
decide to pay dividends on our shares. Tamarack has incurred a net loss in the last two
fiscal years and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is no
assurance that we will be profitable in the future or generate sufficient revenues to
pay dividends to the holders of the shares.

The Company filed a voluntary Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding on June 1, 2019, a
Plan of Reorganization was confirmed on March 20, 2020, and the case was closed on
August 27, 2021,

On June 1, 2019, the Company filed a voluntary Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding in
the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of Washington, Case No.
19-01492, All claims against the Company were subsequently identified within the
schedules of public record. The Company filed a Plan of Reorganization, which was
confirmed on March 20, 2021, and was fully consummated by the Company. The
confirmed Plan of Reorganization provided for payment of 100% of all allowed claims,
and the bankruptcy case was closed on August 27, 2021. The outcome of the Chapter
11 proceeding was a complete success. Nonetheless, the historical bankruptcy
proceeding could carry with it negative publicity, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The 2018 fatal crash of a Citation Jet equipped with Tamarack winglets could bring
additional negative publicity to the Company.

In 2018, a Cessna Citation Jet equipped with Tamarack’s winglets crashed in Indiana,
resulting in the death of three people. Although the Company has seen forensic
evidence that demonstrates that the Tamarack SmartWing winglet system was



functioning properly at the time of the accident, there has been a disproportionate
focus on Tamarack’s winglets in the reporting of the crash, and the Company is a
defendant in a wrongful death lawsuit. Any ongoing negative publicity relating to this
accident or the pending lawsuit could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition. However, the pending wrongful death
claims are limited to the extent of insurance coverage available under the Company’s
policies pursuant to an order from the Bankruptcy Court. As such, there should be no
financial exposure to the Company in any way of ongoing attorney fees, costs, or in
the event of adverse judgment.

The National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) issued a final report on November
3, 2021, concluding that Tamarack’s winglet system was the probable cause of a 2018
fatal crash.

Although the Company strongly disagrees with the probable cause finding in the
NTSB’s final report and is in the process of challenging the report, the negative
publicity associated the NSTB’s report could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Changes to the global technology environment or the demand for flying may
negatively impact our business and our profitability

Qur products are intended to help maximize aircraft efficiency, sustainability and
safety. We expect the industry and market to continue to change significantly in the
future. Demand for aircraft and flying in general, as well as the cost of aircraft and
flying, may cause the customers that we target to reduce the demand for our products
or may negatively affect the price they are willing to pay for our products.

We may face intense competition in our industry from companies with a more
established reputation and greater financial resources than us.

Although there is currently no product on the market that provides the benefits of
Tamarack’s SMARTWING™ products, it is possible that a competitor or even an
original equipment manufacturer (OEM) like Boeing or Textron (Cessna) could
develop and deploy products that are competitive with Tamarack’s SMARTWING™
products. In general, the aerospace industry and aftermarket aircraft modification
industries are highly competitive, and most of our potential competitors have greater
financial resources than we do. Many of our potential competitors have been in
business for many years and have well-established business contacts with companies
that may be target customers of Tamarack. Competitors may enter markets served or
proposed to be served by us, and we may not be able to compete successfully against
such companies or have adequate funds to compete effectively.

The Company relies on intellectual property rights it has developed and obtained. The
Company may be unable to protect its proprietary technologies or defend its
intellectual property rights and may be subject to claims that its products, or the way
in which it conducts its business, infringes the intellectual property rights of third
parties.

We believe that our success will depend in large part upon proprietary technologies
and intellectual property protections. We intend to rely on a combination of patents,



trademarks, trade secret laws and contractual obligations with employees and third
parties to obtain and protect our proprietary technologies and intellectual property.
The steps we have taken to protect our rights may not be adequate to deter
misappropriation of our proprietary information. We also mav not be able to detect
unauthorized use of and take appropriate steps to enforce our intellectual property
rights. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries may not protect our proprietary
rights as fully or in the same manner as do the laws of the United States. Also, despite
the steps taken by us to protect our proprietary rights, others may develop
technologies similar or superior to our technologies and/or design around the
proprietary rights we own. It is possible that our activities, products and services could
infringe certain third-party intellectual property rights that we are currently unaware
of, which could open Tamarack up to potential civil liability. If we are unable to
successfully enforce our intellectual property rights, or if claims are successfully
brought against us for infringing the intellectual property rights of others, such events
could cause us to pay substantial damages, spend significant sums in litigation, cause
us to lose a key competitive advantage, force us to conduct additional research to
develop non-infringing technology, or cause us to pursue a different business
strategy.

Some of the Company’s core patent assets may expire prior to fully exploiting the
technology.

The Company has patent assets that may expire within the next ten years or so, which
gives the Company a limited timeframe for exploiting its technology before certain
technology falls into the public domain. Given the potentially long timeline and high
cost for certifying aircraft modifications on additional models of aircraft, it is possible
that some of the Company’s core patent assets could expire prior to obtaining
certification and selling a substantial number of the Tamarack SMARTWING™
winglets for certain models of aircraft.

The Company has only a limited operating history and has a history of losses. We may
never achieve or maintain profitability.

The Company was formed as a Washington corporation on June 7, 2010, and has
received revenue relating only to the sale of the Company’s SMARTWING™ winglet
systems on the eight variants of Cessna Citation Jets for which our SMARTWING™
technology is certified by the FAA, EASA and other aviation regulatory entities around
the world. We expect to incur operating losses as we expand our certification efforts
to other aircraft models. Although we believe there is reason to be optimistic, there
can be no assurance that we will be able to validate or market our products or
technology in the future such that additional revenues will be generated or that any
revenues generated will be sufficient for use to become profitable or thereafter
maintain profitability. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once our
directors determine that we are financially able to do so, and our directors may never
decide to pay dividends on our shares. Tamarack has incurred a net loss in the last two
fiscal years and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is no
assurance that we will be profitable in the future or generate sufficient revenues to
pay dividends to the holders of the shares.



The Company needs capital to achieve its technology development and business goals.
We expect that our current capital and our other existing resources will be sufficient
only to provide a limited amount of working capital, and revenues generated from
sales, of which there is no assurance, may not be sufficient to fund our continuing
operations and/or our planned growth. We will require significant amounts of capital
to support our planned research and development efforts. If we are unable to secure
capital to fund our operations, we will not be able to continue our testing and
development efforts and we might have to enter into collaborations that could require
us to share some rights to our product candidates. We expect we may require
additional capital after this offering. Management has the choice to seek many forms
of financings, and may choose to seek to sell additional equity or debt securities, or
both, or incur other indebtedness. The incurrence of indebtedness could result in
increased fixed payment obligations and could also result in certain restrictive
covenants, such as limitations on our ability to incur additional debt, limitations on
our ability to acquire or license intellectual property rights and other operating
restrictions that could adversely impact our ability to conduct our business. In
addition, we cannot guarantee that future financing will be available in sufficient
amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. If we are unable to raise additional
capital in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, we will be prevented from
pursuing marketing and sales efforts as well as additional research, development and
commercialization efforts. This could harm our business, prospects and financial
condition. Any additional capital raised through the sale of equity (or convertible debt
securities) will dilute the ownership percentage of our shareholders. This could also
result in a decrease in the fair market value of our equity securities because our assets
would be owned by a larger pool of shareholders. The terms of securities we issue in
future capital transactions may be more favorable to our new investors, and may
include preferences, superior voting rights and the issuance of other derivative
securities, and issuances of incentive awards under equity employee incentive plans,
which may have a further dilutive effect.

Absence of public market.

There is no formal public market for the Shares and no such market can be expected to
develop following completion of this Offering. The Shares have not been registered
under the Securities Act and may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise
transferred except in accordance with all applicable securities laws and the terms of
the investment documents pursuant to which the Shares are being offered. Sales by
Affiliates of the issuer, as that term is defined under the regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, are subject to additional restrictions. Purchasers of the
Shares must be prepared to bear the economic risk of an investment for an indefinite
period of time since the Shares cannot be sold unless they are subsequently registered
or an exemption from registration is available. The Company has no intention of
registering the Shares in the short term.

We are currently dependent on a few key personnel.

Qur success depends, to a large degree, on our ability to retain the services of our
executive management team, whose industry knowledge and leadership would be
difficult to replace. While members of our executive management team are



shareholders of the Company, and thus have a personal incentive to help the
Company succeed, we cannot legally require any of these individuals to continue
working for us and cannot assure investors that we will continue to enjoy the benefit
of their services. We might not be able to execute on our business model if we were to
lose the services of any of our key personnel. If any of these individuals were to leave
the Company unexpectedly, we could face substantial difficulty in hiring qualified
successors and could experience a loss in productivity while any such successor
develops the necessary training and experience. Competition for hiring engineers,
sales and marketing personnel and other qualified personnel may result in a shortfall
in recruiting and competition for qualified individuals could require us to pay higher
salaries, which could result in higher labor costs. If we are unable to recruit and retain
a sufficient number of qualified individuals, or if the individuals we employ do not
meet our standards and expectations, we may not be able to successfully execute on
our business strategy and our operations and revenues could be adversely affected.

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic may adversely affect our business.

In December 2019, a strain of coronavirus was reported to have surfaced in Wuhan,
China, and has spread globally, and on March 12, 2020, the WHO declared COVID-19
to be a pandemic. In an effort to contain and mitigate the spread of COVID-19, many
countries, including the United States, have imposed unprecedented restrictions on
travel, quarantines, and other public health safety measures. Such government
imposed precautionary measures may have been relaxed in certain countries or states,
but there is no assurance that more strict measures will be put in place again due to a
resurgence in COVID-19 cases. The rapidly evolving nature of the circumstances is
such that it is impossible, at this stage, to determine the full and overall impact the
COVID-19 pandemic may have, but it could disrupt production and cause delays in the
supply and delivery of products used in our research and development efforts,
adversely affect our emplovyees, and disrupt our operations, all of which may have a
material adverse effect on our business. In addition, the pandemic may have an
adverse effect on the ability of regulatory bodies to grant approvals, may disrupt the
marketplace in which we operate and may have a material adverse effect on our
operations. Moreover, the COVID-19 pandemic has created significant economic
uncertainty and volatility in the credit and capital markets. Management plans to
secure the necessary financing through the issue of new equity and/or the entering
into of strategic partnership arrangements; however, there is no assurance that our
management will be able to obtain such financing on reasonable terms or at all. A
continuation or worsening of the levels of market disruption and volatility seen in the
recent past could have an adverse effect on our ability to access capital and on the
market price of our common stock, and we may not be able to successfully raise
capital through the sale of our securities. If we are unsuccessful in commercializing
our products or raising capital, we may need to reduce activities, curtail or cease
operations. In addition, a significant outbreak of COVID-19 or other infectious
diseases could result in a widespread health crisis that could adversely affect the
economies and financial markets worldwide, resulting in an economic downturn that
could impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or



immediate family members.

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.

In certain circumstances, your shares are subject to a requirement to revise your
holding structure and a repurchase right in the event you fail to provide necessary
information to effectuate such revised holding structure.

Pursuant to Section 8 of the Subscription Agreement for this Offering, each investor
agrees to exchange the stock owned in the Company for securities issued by a
Crowdfunding SPV and appoints StartEngine Capital, LLC as its agent in effecting any
such transaction, if it occurs. In the event an investor does not provide the necessary
information to effect such transfer in a "timely manner", the Company may
repurchase the stock owned in the Company at a price determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

There are other unidentified risks.

The risks set forth above are not a complete list of the potential risks facing us. We
realize that there may exist significant risks yet to be recognized or encountered to
which we may not be able to effectively respond. There can be no assurance that we
will be successful in addressing these risks or future potential risks, and any failure to
do so could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and
results of operations.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of
Stockholder N . : P t
SRS S Securities Owned |Security Owned Creentase
DH A tics, LLC (100% db
eronautics, LLC (100% owned by |, »45 609 Common Stock [20.29%
Howard Gary Heavin)
Nicholas R. Guida and Tammy Guida |1,901,505 Common Stock [34.08%

The Company'’s Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Preferred Stock, 2021 Convertible
Notes, and Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. As part of the Regulation
Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 1,128,668 of Common Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000,000 with a total of 30,680,945
outstanding.

Voting Rights
1 vote per share. Please see voting rights of securities sold in this otfering below.
Material Rights

The amount outstanding includes 2,718,810 shares to be issued pursuant to stock
options issued, and 1,409,740 shares to be issued pursuant to stock options, reserved
but unissued.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Investor shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(the “CEQ™), or his or her successor, as the Investor’s true and lawful proxy and
attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Investor, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Investor pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Investor is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Investor and, so long as the Investor is an entity, will survive the merger or




reorganization of the Investor or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the
Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 5,000,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

The voting rights of Preferred Stock shall be determined by the Board.
Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Preferred Stock.
2021 Convertible Notes

The security will convert into Common stock (in the event of an ipo or at maturity
date) or common or preferred stock (in the event of a qualified financing). and the
terms of the 2021 Convertible Notes are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2,800,000.00

Maturity Date: March 17, 2026

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Company [PO, Maturity Date, or closing of an equity financing
with gross proceeds of at least $10,000,000.00 in the aggregate.

Material Rights

In the event of an IPO or Qualified Financing, the Convertible Notes may be converted
to the security being sold in such IPO or Qualified Financing at a 20% discount. In the
event the Notes have not converted to equity securities of the Company prior to the
Maturity Date or a sale of the Company, the Note will convert to common stock of the
Company as of the Maturity Date or immediately prior to such sale at a price per share
that is equal to the lower of (i) $1.00 per share or (ii) the Company's most recent 409A
valuation of its Common Stock prior to the Maturity Date or sale date.

In the event of an equity financing that does not consitute a Qualified Financing (i.e. a
financing that generates less than $10,000,000 in aggregate gross proceeds) prior to
the Maturity Date, the Holder of each Convertible Note may elect to convert to the
stock issued in such Other Financing at a price equal to the lesser of 80% of the per-
share price for the Other Financing or $1.00 per share (taking into account the
Company's recent stock split). However, the Holders of the outstanding Convertible



Notes have agreed not to convert at $1.00 in connection with this Regulation
Crowdfunding offering of the Company.

There were a total of three convertible notes sold in this 2021 Convertible Note
Offering: one $1,000,000 note on 3/17/2021; one $1,000,000 note on 7/6/2021; and one

$800,000 note on 8/4/2021. Each of the notes has its own maturity date that is five
years from the date of the respective note.

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 750,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

There are no voting rights associated with Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

Refer to the Amended & Restated Articles of Incorporation, attached as Exhibit F, for
a description of dividend rights, liguidation preference, and conversion.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes
by proxy to the CEO of the Company. Even if you were to receive control of your
voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regard to the
corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs



only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a vear, the securities can only be resold:
e [nanIPO;
e To the company;
¢ To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $2,800,000.00
Use of proceeds: The money from this offering was used for R&D and marketing
efforts relating to the Company's King Air project.
Date: August 04, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

Year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the year ended December 31, 2019



Revenue

Revenue for fiscal year 2020 and 2019 was $4,049,299 and $2,277,589, respectively.
The 78% increase in revenues is attributed to a few factors. The main factor being that
we made significant investments in our marketing and selling activities which
successtully brought customer awareness that our exclusive SMARTWING™
technology adds value to their aircraft, saves time and money, adds safety, and is a
leader in sustainability. In 2020, the Company opened 2 other transformation centers,
one in the United Kingdom and the other in South Carolina, making it easier for
customers in those regions to equip their aircraft with our SMARTWING™ product. In
addition to the increase in revenues from added marketing and sales efforts and
location expansion, revenues were also higher from adding additional revenue streams
such as engineering services in late 2019 and from a funded research and development
project.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in 2020 was $1,974,958, an increase of approximately $563,654 from
costs of $1,411,304 in fiscal year 2019. The increase is mostly attributable to the
increase in sales from SmartWing winglet sales.

Gross Margins

2020 gross profit increased by $1,208,056 over 2019 gross profit and gross margins as a
percentage of revenues increased from 38% in 2019 to 51% in 2020. The gross margin
on SMARTWING™ winglet sales alone went from 39% in 2019 to 43% in 2020. The
increase in gross margin on SmartWing winglet sales was the result of an increase in
the sales price/C] sales mix as well as a drop in average kit cost of sales. We were
building more SmartWing winglet kits which were more efficient with direct labor and
direct and indirect overhead.

Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses consist of, among other things, compensation and
benefits, marketing and sales expenses, fees for professional services and patents,
insurance, and research and development expenses. Expenses in 2020 increased by
$574,418 from 2019. Approximately $436,058 of this amount was increased marketing
and selling expenses that include the hiring of outside expert marketing and sales
consultants and the hiring of 4 members to create a sales team and 2 to focus on the
marketing side. Additional hiring was done throughout the company as well. 2 were
hired in the production/install department to meet the growing demand for
SMARTWING™ kits and installations and 3 engineers were hired to support product
improvement and to grow the engineering consulting business of the company.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is in the production and revenue-generating stage of its SmartWing
active winglet technology on the family of Citation Jets but is in the research and



development stage to expand and enter different markets. We are of the opinion the
historical cash flows will not be indicative of the revenue and cash flows expected for
the future because the Company has successfully restructured itself and emerged from
Chapter 11 bankruptcy, has a new management team, a new strategic plan on how
best to take advantage of the company's significant proprietary technologies and
assets. The Company had previously focused on just business jets, but the new
management team has developed a strategic plan that expands into the commercial
and defense markets. Past cash was primarily generated through equity investments
as the Company brought its first product through the research and development life
cycle to a certified sellable product, then from sales and additionally from alternative
services such as outsourcing our engineering staff when not being utilized for internal
research and development activities. Our goal is to have future positive cash flows
from expanding our proprietary technology into other markets such as military and
defense that can benefit from the fuel savings that our technology has to offer.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of October 2021, the Company has capital resources available from its sales. Cash
on hand on October 31, 2021 was $495,668.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are not critical to our company operations as
the Company has funds and capital resources available to support itself on an ongoing
operation basis in addition to the funds from this Regulation Crowdfunding
Campaign. However, funds from the Regulation Crowdfunding campaign are critical to
the implementation of the Company'’s strategic growth plan based on expanding its
technology to the other aircraft platforms as additional expenditures are required for
research and development for these new platforms.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to complete the Company's
strategic growth plan. Of the total funds that our Company has at the close of the
campaign, 85% are expected to be made up of funds raised from the crowdfunding
campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal of approximately $5 million.
However, in addition to the existing $500,000 cash expected at close, the Company
projects $7.6 million in gross revenue in 2022 from winglet sales, as compared to $5.7
million in 2021. Nonetheless, the expected 2022 revenue is not projected to provide



sufficient cash flow to support our planned operational and R&D costs. Therefore, if
the Regulation Crowdfunding campaign is not successful, the Company will seek
capital from other sources including the sale of additional convertible notes, common
equity, preferred stock, or other securities.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate at current staffing levels for approximately 3 months. This is based
on a current monthly burn rate of $150,134 for expenses related to operations and
R&D. Raising the minimum offering amount would require the Company to
drastically reduce R&D spending until other sources of R&D funding could be secured.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 30 months. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of
$150,134 for expenses related to operations and R&D. Raising the maximum offering
amount would allow the Company to conduct the R&D necessary to scale the
technology and offer other products.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital
including a concurrent exempt offering to accredited investors, strategic investors for
certain projects, and various strategies for increasing sales revenue.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: DH Aeronautics, LLC
Amount Owed: $5,739,611.63
Interest Rate: 5.25%
Maturity Date: March 15, 2028
The listed amount is the principal amount owed. This note pays interest only for
its first 2 years ending on 3/15/2022. The interest rate will increase to 7% on
3/15/2022 and then principal and accrued interest will be paid per annum for the
6 remaining years. This note is secured by certain intellectual property.

e Creditor: Nicholas R. Guida



Amount Owed: $21,532.35

Interest Rate: 5.25%

The listed amount is the principal amount owed. This note and the maturity
dates is 30 days after the note to DH Aeronautics, LLC is repaid.

Creditor: TAGJET, LLC

Amount Owed: $1,300,000.00

Interest Rate: 5.25%

Maturity Date: August 02, 2023

1/5 principal and accrued interest is due annually by the anniversary date.

Creditor: Robert Knollenberg Convertible Note 1

Amount Owed: $1,000,000.00

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Maturity Date: March 17, 2026

The listed amount is the principal amount owed. Interest accrues annually on
the outstanding principal balance. All unpaid interest and principal under this
promissory note (the “Note”) shall be due and payable upon the earlier of (i) five
(5) years after the date of this Note (the “Maturity Date™); (ii) a Qualified
Financing (as defined below); (iii) a Sale of the Company (as defined below); or
(iv) an Event of Default (as defined below). Conversion details: The entire
principal amount and accrued interest on the Notes shall be converted into
shares of the Company’s equity securities (the “Equity Securities”) upon: (i) the
closing of an initial public offering of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to
a Registration Statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (an
“IPO™); (ii) the closing of the Company’s next qualified equity financing (a
"Qualified Financing”) yielding gross proceeds to the Company of at least
$10,000,000 in the aggregate in a single transaction or a series of related
transactions; or (iii) the Maturity Date. Immediately prior to the closing of a Sale
of the Company, the Holder may elect, in its sole discretion, to convert the
outstanding principal and accrued but unpaid interest on this Note into fully
paid and nonassessable Common Stock of the Company.

Creditor: Robert Knollenberg Convertible Note 2

Amount Owed: $1,000,000.00

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Maturity Date: July 06, 2026

The listed amount is the principal amount owed. Interest accrues annually on
the outstanding principal balance. All unpaid interest and principal under this
promissory note (the “"Note”) shall be due and payable upon the earlier of (i) five
(5) years after the date of this Note (the “Maturity Date”); (ii) a Qualified
Financing (as defined below); (iii) a Sale of the Company (as defined below); or
(iv) an Event of Default (as defined below). Conversion details: The entire
principal amount and accrued interest on the Notes shall be converted into
shares of the Company’s equity securities (the “Equity Securities”) upon: (i) the
closing of an initial public offering of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to



a Registration Statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (an
“IPO™); (ii) the closing of the Company’s next qualified equity financing (a
“Qualified Financing”) vielding gross proceeds to the Company of at least
$10,000,000 in the aggregate in a single transaction or a series of related
transactions; or (iii) the Maturity Date. Immediately prior to the closing of a Sale
of the Company, the Holder may elect, in its sole discretion, to convert the
outstanding principal and accrued but unpaid interest on this Note into fully
paid and nonassessable Common Stock of the Company.

¢ Creditor: TAGJET, LLC Convertible Note
Amount Owed: $800,000.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Maturity Date: August 04, 2026
The listed amount is the principal amount owed. Interest accrues annually on
the outstanding principal balance. All unpaid interest and principal under this
promissory note (the “Note”) shall be due and payable upon the earlier of (i) five
(5) years after the date of this Note (the “Maturity Date™); (ii) a Qualified
Financing (as defined below); (iii) a Sale of the Company (as defined below); or
(iv) an Event of Default (as defined below). Conversion details: The entire
principal amount and accrued interest on the Notes shall be converted into
shares of the Company’s equity securities (the “Equity Securities”) upon: (i) the
closing of an initial public offering of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to
a Registration Statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (an
“IPO™); (ii) the closing of the Company’s next qualified equity financing (a
“Qualified Financing”) yielding gross proceeds to the Company of at least
$10,000,000 in the aggregate in a single transaction or a series of related
transactions; or (iii) the Maturity Date. Immediately prior to the closing of a Sale
of the Company, the Holder may elect, in its sole discretion, to convert the
outstanding principal and accrued but unpaid interest on this Note into fully
paid and nonassessable Common Stock of the Company.

¢ Creditor: Richard Helms
Amount Owed: $520,000.00
Interest Rate: 12.0%
Maturity Date: October 01, 2022
$1,000,000 original principal

e Creditor: Raymond Bailey
Amount Owed: $500,000.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

Maturity Date: June 09, 2022
Interest Rate: $333.33 per day

Related Party Transactions



¢ Name of Entity: Robert Knollenberg
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: The Company has entered into
two convertible notes with Mr. Knollenberg, both in the amount of $1,000,000
for a total of $2,000,000.
Material Terms: Both notes earn interest per annum at a rate of 5% on the
outstanding principal. The maturity dates are 3/17/2026 and 7/6/2026. Principal
and accrued interest are not due until maturity and these notes have the option
to convert to common stock.

¢ Name of Entity: TAGJET, LLC
Names of 20% owners: Robert Knollenberg and Richard Hollis Helms Revocable
Trust
Relationship to Company: Nicholas Guida is a member of TAGJET, LLC and is a
20% shareholder, Director and officer of Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc. The
following board members are also members of TAGJET, LLC: Jere Kovach, Robert
Knollenberg, John McCann, and John Snedden
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: One promissory note in the
amount of $1,300,000 and one convertible note in the amount of $800,000.
Material Terms: TAGJET is the holder of an outstanding promissory note with an
outstanding principal amount of $1,300,000. It accrues interest annually at
5.25%. Interest and 1/3rd principal is due on the anniversary date of 8/2/XXXX
until it matures on 8/2/2023. This note is secured by certain intellectual
property. TAGJET, LLC also has a convertible note with a principal amount of
$800,000 and 5% interest. The maturity dates is 8/4/2026. Principal and accrued
interest are not due until maturity and this notes has the option to convert to
common stock.

e Name of Entity: DH Aeronautics, LLC
Names of 20% owners: Gary Heavin
Relationship to Company: 20%+ Owner
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: DH Aeronautics, LLC is the holder
of a promissory note with an outstanding principal amount of $5,739, 612.
Material Terms: The interest rate for this promissory note is 5.25% through
March 15, 2022, and then increases to 7% for the next 6 years. Interest only is
due on the first two annual anniversaries, with annual payments of principal and
interest is due thereafter until it matures in March 15, 2028. This note is secured
by certain Company intellectual property.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $135,916,586.35
Valuation Details:

Tamarack determined an enterprise value using a discounted cash flow (DCF) model



based on projected operational cash flows from 2022 through 2028 and included a
terminal value derived by applying an EBITDA multiple of 10x (which we believe is
conservative for an aerospace technology company) to the 2028 projected EBITDA.

The calculated enterprise value was further reduced by the Company's existing
contractual debt.

The Company's last equity raise was at $30 per share in 2017 (which would be equal to
$6.00 per share after the Company's recent 1 to-5 stock split). At that time, the
Company raised a total of $4.4 million. We believe the Company is on a more valuable
trajectory today than it was during the 2017 equity raise due to a stronger
management team and a strategic plan that extends well beyond light jets to
commercial and military aircraft models where operators (customers) can achieve
greater economic gains from using the Company's fuel-saving technology.

The Company has significant assets to support its operations and valuation,
including:

Intellectual Property - The Company has invested over $27 million into developing its
intellectual property.

Inventory - The Company has $1.2 million of inventory, all of which is used in current
sales.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E) - The Company has invested $1.0 million in
PP&E.

While the Company has invested more than $28 million in Intellectual Property and
PP&E, the economic value to the Company is much higher because these assets are
used, along with additional future investment, to generate over $300 million of
projected sales over the next seven vears.

The Company set its valuation internally without a formal-third party independent
evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In making this
calculation, we have assumed: (1) all preferred stock is converted to common stock;
(ii) all outstanding options are exercised; and (iii) any shares reserved for issuance
under a stock plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities
currently outstanding. The Company currently has $2,800,000 in Convertible Notes
outstanding. Please refer to the Company Securities section of the Offering
Memorandum for further details regarding current outstanding convertible securities
which may affect vour ownership in the future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,998.51 we plan to use these proceeds as



follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

o Research & Development
96.5%
The minimum funding goal (approximately $10,000) would provide very little
working capital for product engineering and administration. Additional sources
of funding would be necessary to achieve the Company’s goals if only the
minimum funding goal were reached.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $4,999,999.24, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e Research & Development

96.5%

These funds will be used for product engineering, flight testing, and certification
for additional aircraft models. Aviation products require extensive R&D and
testing to support FAA certification, and this amount would go a long way in
helping to achieve the Company’s goals, although additional future funding will
likely be necessary. Raising the maximum amount (approximately $5,000,000)
would allow the Company to advance near term Research & Development, as
compared to raising the minimum amount (approximately $10,000) would
require the Company to seek other funding to expand and scale the technology.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once



posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
www.tamarackaero.com (www.tamarackaero.com/annualreport).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) 1t is required to file reports under Section 15(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com/tamarackaero

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR Tamarack
Aerospace Group, Inc.

[See attached]
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INDEPENDEMNT AUDITORS' REPORT

To Board of Directors and Management of
Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc.
Sandpoint, Idaho

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tamarack Aerospace Group,
Inc. (a Washington corporation), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,
2020 and 2019 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit),
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc. as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are required to be
independent of Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of a Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc.
will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements, Tamarack Aerospace
Group, Inc. has a history of net losses and negative cash flows from operations and has stated that
substantial doubt exists about Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management's evaluation of the events and conditions and managements plans regarding these
matters are also described in Note 5. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that
might result from the cutcome of this uncertainty. Qur conclusion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tamarack Aerospace Group,
Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are available to be issued.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc.’'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We are reguired to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Spokane, Washington
October 25, 2021



TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets
2020 20149
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 5 31B5,368 4 97,977
Accounts receivable, net 203,019 163,336
Inventory 1,373,674 1,808,293
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 365,933 171031
Total current assets 2,327,994 2,240,637
Property and eguipment, net 65,951 127,444
Intangible assets, net 915,340 1,011,688
Total assets 3 3,312,315 > 3,379,765
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
2020 2019
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 5 278,266 5 64,668
Prepetition accounts payable and accrued costs - 194,700
Accrued expenses 317,061 277 468
Warranty liability 187 660 295 742
Accrued interest 281,309 1.405.EB86
Deferred revenue and customer deposits JB7. 170 137,000
Current portion of notes payable 362,800 4,257,183
Total current liabilities 2,214,266 6,632,647
Prepetition provision for product claims 1,450,000 1,550,000
Line of credit 1,950,000 927,555
Notes payable, net of current portion 5,761,144 -
Total liabilities 11,375,410 9,110,202
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity (deficit)
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020 or 2015 - -
Common stock, no par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized,

5,156,864 and 4,994,871 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respecti 26,923 078 26,898,779
Additional paid-in capital 8,014 466 7,816,879
Accumulated other comprehensive income (15,197) (1,549)
Retained earnings {42 985 442) (40.444,542)

Total stockholders® equity (deficit) (8,063,095) (5,730,433)
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity (deficit) 5 3,312,315 5 3,379,769

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Net revenue 5 4,049,299 5 2,277 589
Cost of sales (1,074 958) {1,411,304)
Gross profit 2,074,341 866,285
Operating expenses

Research and development 970,045 877,573

Selling expenses 731,197 295,139

General and adminstrative 2,151,330 1,997,262

Depreciation & amortization 107,206 215,386
Total operating expenses 3,959,778 3,385,360
Operating loss (1,885,437 (2,519,075)
Other income (expenses)

Interest expense (443,075) (601,308)

Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets - -

Interest income 9,767 1,714
Net loss before reorganization and income taxes (2,318,745) (3,118,669)
Reorganization items:

(Gain) loss on disposal of fixed assets - 44 387

Professional fees 222,155 129,793
MNet loss before income taxes (2,540,900) (3,292 8439)
Provision for income taxes -
Net loss {2,540,900) (3,292, 849)
Other comprehensive loss

Foreign currency translation differences (13,648) (1,549)
Total comprehensive loss (2,554,548) (3,294,398)

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Accumulated
Accumulated Other
Preferred Stock Common 5tock Additional Earnings Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Paid-In Capital (Deficit) Income Total

Balance, December 31, 2018 - 5 - 4,994 871 5 26,898,779 5 7368762 5(37.151.693) 5 S (2,884,152)

Stock-based compensation - options - - - 448,117 - 448,117

Met loss - - - - - (3,292,849 {1,549) (3,294, 398)
Balance, December 31, 2019 - - 4,994,871 26,898,779 7.816,879 (40,444,547} {1,549) (5,730,433)

Stock-based compensation - options - - - - 197 587 . 197,587

Exercise of options - - 161,993 24,299 = - - 24,2949

Met loss . - - (2,540,900) (13,648) (2,554 548)
Balance, December 31, 2020 - 5 - 5,156 864 5 26,923,078 5 8014466 S(42,985442) & (15,197} % (8,063,095)

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMETNS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Met loss 5 (2,540,900) & (3,292,849)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 166,369 258,591
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 44 387
Amortization of loan fees - 25,006
Stock-based compensation 197,587 448,117
[Increase) decreasein assets:
Accounts receivable (39,683) (60,515)
Inventory 434,619 424,064
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (194,902) (33,111}
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 213,598 (244,230)
Prepetition liabilities (194,700) 194,700
Accrued expenses 39,593 (136,295)
Accrued interest 379,684 545,680
Warranty liability (108,082) 278,917
Prepetition provision for CI3 liability (100,000 -
Deferred revenue and customer deposits 650,170 53,400
Net cash used in operating activities (1,096,647) (1,490,138}

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment {11,558) (42)

Net cash used in investing activities (11,558) {42)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from notes payable 362,500 -

Met proceeds (payments) on line of credit 1,022.445 927,255

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 24,299 -

Principal payments on notes payable - {1,182,739)
Met cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1409 244 [255 484}
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash (13,648) (1,549)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 287,391 (1,747,213}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 97977 1,845,190
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year § 385368 ﬁ 57,577
supplement Noncash Investing and Financing Activities

Interest captialized as part of reorganization of debt 5 1,498,165 5 -

Supplemental Disclosure

Interest paid 5 - 5 -

Taxes paid 5 - 5 -

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

MNote 1 = Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
This summary of significant accounting policies of Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc. (“the Company”) is presented to assist
in understanding the Company’'s consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements and notes are

representations of the Company’'s management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity.

Business activities

Tamarack Aerospace Group, Inc. was incorporated on June 7, 2010 under the laws of the State of Washington, and is
headquartered in Sandpoint, |daho. The Company has developed, patented, and obtained Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) and European Aviation Safety Administration (EASA) certifications for Active Technology Load
Alleviation System [ATLAS) winglets on the Cessna Citation Cl, CJ1, Cl1+, CJ2, CI2+, CI3, Cl3+, and M2. ATLAS winglet
technology detects and alleviates wing stress and load when encountering abnormal gravitational forces, reducing the
need for extensive and costly structural reinforcement of aircraft wings when installing winglets.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“"GAAP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered
necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All such adjustments are normal and recurring in nature. The
Company's fiscal year end is December 31,

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Tamarack
Aerospace, Ltd. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation process.

Foreign currency

The Company's functional currency is the United States Dollar and financial statement presentation is in United States
Dollars. The Company's subsidiary, Tamarack Aerospace, LTD's functional currency is in Euro. The translation from
Tamarack Aerospace, LTD's functional currency to United States Dollars for financial statement presentation resulted in
foreign currency translation loss of 513,648 and 51,549, respectively.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Any
estimates made by management have been done in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liguid debt instruments purchased with
a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, that
may at times, exceed federal insured limits. No losses have been recognized as a result of these excess amounts.

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at the original invoice amount less an allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts
receivable are accounted for at face value and the Company generally requires no collateral as a condition of granting
credit for engineering sales. The Company generally requires full payment of contractual sales price for the purchase and
installation of winglets prior to releasing the plane to the customer. On occasion, should the Company grant credit to a
customer for a sales and installation of winglets, the Company will secure a mechanic’s lien on the winglets. Interest is
not charged on accounts past due. Management determines the collectability of accounts by regularly evaluating
individual customer receivables and considering a customer’s financial condition, credit history, and current economic
conditions. The allowance is determined by reviewing the status of past due accounts at each year end and bad debt
expense is recorded in the period in which an account is determined to be uncollectible.

Management's evaluation of the collectability of trade receivables resulted in determining no allowance for doubtful
accounts was necessary at either December 31, 2020 or 2019,

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 99% of receivables were from two and four customers, respectively.

Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined based on average costs that
approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory at year end consists of raw materials and finished
products. Finished product includes the cost of raw material and direct labor. Indirect labor and other indirect
manufacturing costs are allocated to inventory and cost of sales. The company records impairment reserves against
inventory balances as deemed necessary. There were no impairment reserves recorded for the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2018.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Items with a useful life over one year are
capitalized. Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which
ranges from 2 to 20 years. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. The Company reviews
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances have indicated the carrying amount of its assets
might not be recoverable. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, no assets have been impaired.

Intangibles

Intangible assets purchased or developed by the Company are recorded at cost. Amortization is recognized over the
estimated useful life (20 years) of the asset using the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The Company
reviews the recoverability of intangible assets, including the related useful lives, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. No impairment was considered necessary at
December 31, 2020 or 2019,

Advertising costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs were 5125,216 and 521,833 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 20189, respectively.

Research and development costs

The Company expenses internal and third-party research and development costs as incurred. Research and development
costs were $970,045 and 5877,573 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Shipping costs

Substantially all shipping and handling costs associated with outbound freight are included in cost of sales.

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Product warranty

The Company warrants the ATLAS winglets will be free of defects in installation, design, material, and workmanship for
a period ranging from one-year or 300 flight hours, whichever comes first. The Company accrues an amount to warranty
liability and records a related expense in an amount of 53,000 per sale and installation of a set of ATLAS winglets.

Revenue recaghition

The Company recognizes revenue under ASC 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company's revenue
recognition policy standards include the following elements:

. Identify the contract with a customer

II. Identify the performance obligations in the contract
. Determine the transaction price
IV, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized upon the transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers. Revenue consists of sales
and installations of winglets, and contracted engineering services, Revenue for sales and installations is recognized when
the items are delivered to customers. The sole performance obligation is to complete the installation of the purchased
winglets and is considered settled upon final electrical testing and notification that the customer’s plane is ready for pick-
up. Revenue for engineering services is recognized monthly at the time the Company has the right to bill for services
provided. The Company has one long-term engineering contract in which the performance obligation is settled over time.
Revenue is recognized on this contract using an output method based on the amount of costs incurred relative to the
total estimated costs to complete the project. Subsequent to December 31, 2020, this contract was canceled by the other
party due to reasons internal to them and not related to the Company. See "Subsequent events’ footnote below. Revenue
is presented net of returns and discounts. Deposits received from customers prior to installation of winglets are recorded
as deferred revenue until the installation is complete and the customer has been notified.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, 16% of revenue was from one research and development customer. There were
no such concentrations in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Revenue consists of the following at December 31:

2020 2019
Sales and installation 5 3,773,276 5 2,844 000
Engineering services 166,854 145,911
Research and devlopement contract 655,289 -
Other 125,358 101,575
Total gross revenue 4,720,777 3,091,486
Returns and allowances (671,478) (813 897)
Met revenue 5 4,049,299 5 2,277,589

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Fair value measurements

Fair value is defined as an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement
determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing and asset or liability. There are three
levels that prioritize the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

s Level 1: Observable market inputs, such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identically assets or
liahilities;

s Level 2: Observable market inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

» Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop
its own assumptions.

All financial instruments on the balance sheets approximate their fair value.

stock compensation

The Company estimates the fair value of share-based payment awards using the Black-5choles option-pricing model.
Compensation expense is recognized for all share-based payment awards, generally over a service period of four years.

Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using an asset and liability approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the consolidated financial
statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities at the applicable enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance is provided
when it is more likely than not some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company evaluates
the realizability of its deferred tax assets by assessing its valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of such
allowance, if necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization include the Company’s forecast of future
taxable income and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets.
Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income in applicable tax jurisdictions could affect the ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets.

The Company adheres to the provisions of FASB ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, relating to accounting for uncertain tax
positions. The Company recognizes the tax benefit from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely that not the tax
positions will be sustained on examination by the tax authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax
benefit is measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2018 financial statement presentation to conform to the current year's
format. There was no change to net loss or ending stockholders’ deficit as a result of these reclassifications.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The FASB issued this update to increase transparency
and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities to the balance sheet and
disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. Following the adverse effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
FASBE issued ASU 2020-05, delaying the effective date of ASU 2016-02 to years beginning after December 15, 2021,
although early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the effect the ASU will have on its financial
statements and disclosures.

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
_lu_



TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments -Credit Losses (Topic 326). The new standard requires
financial assets measured at amortized cost be presented at the net amount expected to be collected, through an
allowance for credit losses that is deducted from the amortized cost basis. The standard will be effective for the Company
beginning lanuary 1, 2023 with early application permitted. Management is currently evaluating the effect the ASU will
have on its financial statements and disclosures.

The Company is not aware of any additional accounting standards updates that would have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Note 2 — Inventory

Inventory consists of the following at Decemnber 31:

2020 2019
Materials and supplies 5 1,169,173 5 1,728,580
Finished goods 204,501 79,713
Intangible assets, net 5 1,373,674 5 1,808,293

Note 3 — Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31:

2020 2019
Shop equipment 5 608,392 5 608,180
Machinery and equipment 300,631 295,434
Leasehold improvements 8,365 9,915
917,388 913,529
Accumulated depreciation (848.,407) (786,085)
Property and equipment, net 5 68 981 5 127,444

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 570,021 and 5162,243, respectively.

Note 4 — Intangibles

Intangible assets consists of the following at December 31:

2020 2019
Intellectual property 5 1,927,000 5 1,927,000
Other intangible assets 568,000 568,000
2,495,000 2,495,000
Accumulated amortization (1,579,660) (1,483,312)
Intangible assets, net 5 915,340 4 1,011,688

Amortization expense of $96,348 was recorded for both years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

MNote 5 = Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern,
which contemplates the recoverability of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company has incurred losses from inception of 543,000,639 and has negative cash flows from operations since
inception which, amang other factors, raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon management's plans to raise
additional capital from the issuance of debt or the sale of stock, its ability to continue profitable sales of its flagship
product and services, and its ability to generate positive operational cash flow.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to achieve or maintain cash-flow-positive operating results. If
the Company is unable to generate adequate funds from operations or raise sufficient additional funds, the Company
may not be able to repay its existing debt, continue to develop its product, respond to competitive pressures, or fund its
operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from this uncertainty.

Note & — Line of Credit

In August 2019, the Company signed a secured line of credit promissory note with a related party which allows the
Company to borrow up to 51,950,000, One third of the outstanding principal on the line of credit will be due and payable
on the second and third anniversary of the note (August 2021 and August 2022), with the remainder of outstanding
principal due on the fourth anniversary of the note (August 2023). The line of credit bears interest at 5.25% per annum,
and will increase to 10% per annum if any amounts remain outstanding after the August 2023 maturity date. The line of
credit is secured by certain patents and intellectual property of the Company.

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2013, the Company recognized interest expense on borrowings under
the line of credit of 582,954 and 518,599, respectively.

Note 7 — Notes Payable

During 2016, the Company issued three convertible promissory notes to related parties. The notes all accrue interest at
10%. If the outstanding principal and accrued interest is not repaid in full by the maturity date, each lender may, at their
option, convert the outstanding balance of their note, including any unpaid capitalized interest, into shares of common
stock of the Company at a conversion price equal to 510 per share. In March 2020, the Company had its Chapter 11 Plan
of Reorganization approved and two of the outstanding convertible notes were reorganized into a single promissory
note, which is no longer convertible into commeon shares of the Company (See Note 8). Additionally, as part of the
approved Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization plan, the outstanding convertible note with the Company’s founder was
rearganized into a new note, which is no longer convertible into common shares of the Company (See Note 8).

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

The following table summarizes the terms of the outstanding promissory note:

2020 2019

Mote payable to a related party with an interest rate

of 5.25%, until second anniversary in which it

increases to 7%. Maturity dateis March 2028.

Interest only payments for two years, with annual

payments thereafter. Secured by certain intellectual

property. 5 5,739,612 & -

Mote payable to a related party with an interest rate

of 10%., Maturity dateis July 2019, 525,000

installment payment for each package of CI1 winglets

sold. - 242,183

Mote payable to a related party with an interest rate

of 10%. Maturity dateis July 2019, 575,000

installment payment for each package of CI3 winglets

sold. - 4,000,000

Business loan with the Company founder with an
interest rate of 5.25%. Note is unsecured and maturity
date is 30 days after the above note is repaid. 21,532 -

Business loan with the Company founder with an
interest rate of 10%. Mote is unsecured and maturity
dateis July 2019. - 15,000

Paycheck Protection Program loan with an interest
rate of 1%. Note is secured by property held by the
Company and maturity date is April 18, 2022. Loan
was forgiven in full in February 2021. 362,800 -

Total notes payable 6,123,944 4,257,183
Current portion of notes payable (362,800) (4,257,183)

Tatal notes pavable, net of current portion é SI?EliltM é -

Future minimum payments for each of years ended December 31 are as follows:

2021 4 -
2022 -
2023 956,602
2024 956,602
2025 956,602
Thereafter 2,891,338
5 5,761,144

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded interest expense of 5419,813 and
$582,709, respectively.

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

On August 7, 2019, the Company repaid an existing note payable with a banking institution. The total payment made was
5875,756 in which 5867,555 and 58,201 was issued for remining principal and additional fees, respectively. On December
4, 2019, the Company sold a Cirrus Design airplane for proceeds of $80,500 and used these proceeds to pay off an existing
note payable with a banking institution as part of the sale agreement. The Company recorded a gain on disposal of asset
of 544,387 in the year ended December 31, 2010.

Note 8 = Risks, Uncertainties, and Contingencies

The Company's business and operations are sensitive to general business and economic conditions in the United States. A
host of factors beyond the Company's contral could cause fluctuations in these conditions. Adverse conditions may include
recession, downturn or otherwise, local competition or changes in consumer taste. These adverse conditions could affect
the Company's financial condition and the results of its operations.

COVID-19

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) was reported in Wuhan, China and has spread throughout the
United States and the rest of the world. The World Health Organization has declared the outbreak to constitute a “Public
Health Emergency of International Concern.” This contagious disease outbreak, which has not been contained, and is
disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a range of industries in United States and other companies
as a result of quarantines, facility closures, and travel and logistics restrictions in connection with the outbreak, as well as
the worldwide adverse effect to workforces, economies, and financial markets, leading to a global economic downturn,
Regarding future operations, the related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

Bankruptcy Proceedings

The Company applied the guidance in ASCE52: Reorganizations, as it pertains to the bankruptcy proceedings discussed above,
There were no discontinued operations or change in ownership structure of the Company resulting from the bankruptcy and
as such fresh start reporting’ is not necessary and comparative financial statements are presented.

In mid-2019, the Company was subject to several grounding claims resulting from an April 2019 no-injury, no-damage
incident in the United Kingdom (UK) that was reported to the European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA) and subsequently to
the U.S. Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) through a bilateral agreement between the two agencies. The April 2019
incident had followed a November 2018 fatal accident that occurred in Indiana involving an aircraft equipped with Tamarack
winglets. To date the National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) investigation into the 2018 fatal accident is still open, but
no evidence has been produced showing that the Company's products failed on the flight. Taking both events into
consideration, EASA cautiously issued an Airworthiness Directive (AD) in April 2019 that grounded all Company-equipped
aircraft in Europe and then FAA followed suit in May 2019 in the United States to allow the safety agencies to investigate
the no-injury, no-damage incident that occurred in the UK. After the investigation, the FAA and EASA found that the
Company's Service Bulletins, issued prior to the incident, were sufficient to address the safety concern and no further action
was required on the part of the Company. The grounding impacted 91 customers, lasting three months in Europe and two
rmonths in the US, both being resolved in mid-July 2019. The negative impact of the 2019 grounding temporarily resulted in
a steep reduction in sales of new winglets and led to the Company filing for Chapter 11 bankruptcy in June 2019. The
Company submitted a reorganization plan that was approved in March 2020, The Company subseguent emerged from
Chapter 11 in August of 2021.

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

The following are the effects of the approved plan on matters impacting the financial statements:

¢ InDecember 2019, as part of the approved plan the Company sold its Cirrus SR-22 Aircraft for proceeds of 580,500
and recognized a loss on disposal of 544,387,

«  Prepetition liabilities, which represent valid claims against the Company prior to filing petition for protection under
Chapter 11 bankruptcy code, were identified by the Company and recorded and the expected amount of the
allowed claim. These liabilities include the following and are recorded as separate line items on the balance sheets:

o 5173,947 of operating payables,
o 51,550,000 provision for product claims (See ‘Provisions for product claims below),
o 520,753 of accrued PTO, unreimbursed expense, and other accruals.

* For two outstanding convertible notes to entities related through common ownership, the principal and
outstanding interest was reorganized into a single note totaling 55,739,612 of note principal with a maturity date
8 years from the date of the approved plan, and bearing interest at 5.25% per annum, until the second anniversary
when the interest increases to 7% per annum. The Company will make Interest only payments for two years, and
then principal and interest payments due guarterly from the third anniversary through maturity. As part of the
reorganization, the principal and accrued interest is no longer convertible into common shares of the Company.
Prior to reorganization, the two notes were due in 2019, carried interest at 10% per annum, and were convertible
into common shares at a rate of 510 per share.

« For the single outstanding convertible note to the Company's founder, principal and outstanding interest was
organized into a note totaling 521,532, and the interest rate was amended to 5.25% per annum (from 10% per
annumy), the maturity date changed to 30 days from the date the above note is paid in full, and the conversion
feature removed.

¢  Warranty, grounding, and wrongful death claims identified (see below), the plan affirms that those claims are
allowable to the extent of the insurance coverage held by the Company.

At December 31, 2020, there is a single subrogation claim outstanding that was not adjudicated in the above approved
reorganization plan that is related to the 2020 wrongful death case. The matter is in its early stages and the Company
asserts that this claim is subject to the same insurance coverage as noted above and will not result in an obligation of the
Company, even in the remote event of an unfavorable outcome.

Provision for product claims

During April and May 2018, unrelated to and well before the fleet grounding, Company was notified that the CI3 ATLAS
winglets for the Cessna Citation CJ3 airframe were potentially restricting some CJ3 models from reaching their MMO or
max speed limits for extended periods of time. As a result, the Company suspended sales and installation of the CJ3
winglets until additional engineering analysis and assessment was completed. The Company determined that conditions
existed for an accrual of a warranty loss contingency directly related to the CJ3 ATLAS winglets. Accordingly, the Company
recorded an estimated loss contingency of 51,550,000 and a corresponding amount was charged to operations in 2018,
As the Company provides required services to address the issue noted above, those costs are charged against the liability.
Subseqguently, the early 2018 warranty claims have been addressed in the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy plan, and an
undetermined amount of these claims are expected to be addressed by the Company’s grounding insurance. The
following is a reconciliation of activity impacting the provision during the years ended:

2020 2019
Provision for CJ3, beginning of year 5 1,550,000 5 1,550,000
Additions - -
Costs incurred (100,000} -
Provision for CJ3, year end 5 1,450,000 5 1,550,000

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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TAMARACK AEROSPACE GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

The Company did not charge any additional costs to operations resulting from matters related to this provision in either
year ended December 31, 2020 or 2019,

Note 9 - Warranty and Product Replacement Provision

Changes in the Company’s warranty and product replacement provision are as follows:

2020 2019
Warranty liability, beginning of year & 295,742 5 16,825
Obligations fulfilled (174,082) (340,160
Provision for sales during the year 66,000 619,077
Warranty liability, end of year 5 187 660 5 295,742

Note 10 — Operating Leases

The Company leases certain real property and equipment under operating leases which expire between September 2023

and June 2025, with monthly payments ranging from approximately 52,000 to 58,750, Rent expense on these leases was
$153,830 and 135,388, respectively.

Future minimum payments related to this lease for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

2021 & 166,573
2022 169,587
2023 157,943
2024 116,701
2025 59,124
Thereafter -

Note 11 — Common Stock

At both December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has 10,000,000, no par value, shares of common stock authorized, with
5,156,864 and 4,994,871 shares issued and outstanding, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the
Company issued 161,993 shares of common stock for the exercise of options. There were not common shares transactions
during the year ended December 31, 2019.

Note 12 — Preferred Stock

The Company has 1,000,000, no par value shares of preferred stock authorized at both December 31, 2020 and 2019, There
were no issuances of preferred shares in the years ended December 31, 2020 or 2019. At both December 31, 2020 and 2019,
the Company had no preferred shares issued and outstanding.

The preferred stock is senior to the rights of the commeon stock in the event of liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the
Company, and shall be entitles to vote or consent together with the holders of the shares of common stock, as a single class,
on all matters on which holders of common stock are entitles to vote or consent, with each share of preferred stock voting
on an as-if-converted to common stock basis.

Each share of preferred stock is convertible, at the option of the